1952

# Robert V. Tiller and Mildred Molinari v. Loren G. Norton et al : Brief of Appellants

Utah Supreme Court

# IN THE SUPREME COURT of the STATE OF UTAH

ROBERT V. TILLER, also known as Robert V.  
Tillier, also known as ROBERT V. SWANN,  
and MILDRED MOLINARI,

*Plaintiffs and Appellants,*

vs.

LOREN G. NORTON, LOREN G. NORTON,  
administrator of the Estate of CHARLES  
CARSON, also known as H. F. SWANN, also  
known as R. C. TILLER, also known as  
ROBERT C. TILLER, deceased, and THE  
EMPLOYERS LIABILITY ASSURANCE  
CORPORATION, LTD., a corporation, and  
E. LeROY SHIELDS, as executor of the Estate  
of Grace Catherine Carson, deceased, and E.  
LEROY SHIELDS,

*Defendants and Respondents,*  
and

LOREN G. NORTON, GLORIA NORTON, wife  
of Loren G. Norton, EDITH M. HAZELRIGG  
and CATHEDRAL OF THE MAGDALENE  
CATHOLIC CHURCH OF East South Temple,  
Salt Lake City, Utah, also known as ROMAN  
CATHOLIC BISHOP OF SALT LAKE CITY,  
a corporation sole,

*Cross-Defendants.*

No. 7770

## APPELLANTS' BRIEF

### THE FACTS

This is an appeal by the plaintiffs, Robert V. Tiller,  
also known as Robert V. Tillier, also known as Robert V.

Swann and Mildred Molinari, from a Decree in favor of the defendants and against the plaintiffs, no cause of action.

This action was commenced by the plaintiffs filing an action against Loren G. Norton, Loren G. Norton, administrator of the Estate of Charles Carson, also known as H. F. Swann, also known as R. C. Tiller, also known as Robert C. Tiller, deceased, and The Employers Liability Assurance Corporation, Ltd., the latter being the bondsman of Loren G. Norton the administrator. (R. 1). Plaintiffs then filed an amended complaint with leave of court (R. 23) to which complaint answers were filed by the respective defendants and a cross complaint was then filed with leave of court by the defendant, The Employers Liability Assurance Corporation, Ltd., against Loren G. Norton, Gloria Norton, wife of Loren G. Norton, Edith M. Hazelrigg and Cathedral of the Magdalene Catholic Church of East South Temple, Salt Lake City, Utah, also known as Roman Catholic Bishop Salt Lake City, a corporation sole. (R. 58). By reason of the filing of the cross complaint, plaintiffs then with leave of court filed a second amended complaint (R. 72), adding as party defendants E. LeRoy Shields, as executor of the Estate of Grace Catherine Carson, deceased and E. LeRoy Shields. Answers were then filed by the defendants to plaintiffs' second amended complaint (The Employers Liability Assurance Corporation R. 101) (E. LeRoy Shields, executor R. 115) (Loren G. Norton R. 141) and trial was had upon the same.

In this brief we shall refer to the parties as follows:

Robert V. Tiller and Mildred Molinari—plaintiffs  
 Loren G. Norton—administrator  
 The Employers' Liability Assurance Corporation  
 E. LeRoy Shields—executor.

The complaint alleges in substance that the plaintiffs are residents of Chicago, Illinois and that defendant, Loren G. Norton, is a resident of Salt Lake County and was the duly appointed qualified and acting administrator of the Estate of Charles Carson, etc. and that the defendant, The Employers Liability Assurance Corporation, Ltd., is a corporation of Great Britain, authorized to do business in the State of Utah, and that E. LeRoy Shields is the duly qualified, and acting executor of the Estate of Grace Catherine Carson, deceased.

That one Charles Carson died intestate in Salt Lake City, Utah, on the 8th day of October, 1948, a resident of Salt Lake City, Utah, and is referred to in the complaint at all later times either as H. F. Swann, Henry F. Swann, R. C. Tiller, also known as Robert C. Tiller.

That the plaintiffs are the children and issue of the marriage of one Maydie Sherman and R. C. Tiller and that for many years prior to 1922, the plaintiffs and Maydie Sherman Tiller, their mother, and R. C. Tiller, their father, resided at Vetat, South Dakota where R. C. Tiller was known as H. F. Swann, or Henry F. Swann. That in May of 1922, Maydie Tiller, the mother of plaintiffs was forced to leave R. C. Tiller, by reason of cruel treatment and left the family ranch at Vetat, South Dakota, and sought residence at Chicago, Illinois and that



shortly thereafter, R. C. Tiller did likewise take residence at Chicago, Illinois. That Maydie Tiller, the mother of plaintiffs, divorced R. C. Tiller at Chicago, Illinois, on the 11th day of July, 1924 and that R. C. Tiller remained absent from his family, the plaintiffs, from 1924 until the date of his death and that the plaintiffs between 1924 and July 7, 1950, were never informed of the location of their father or his address, but that he had gone under an assumed name of Charles Carson and so did business in Salt Lake City, Utah, until the date of his death on October 8, 1948; that Charles Carson was buried in Salt Lake City, Utah, on the 12th day of October, 1948, and left an estate appraised at \$28,620.99. That on the 11th day of October, 1948, one Dr. Howard T. Anderson, a preferred creditor of Charles Carson, deceased, did file a joint petition for letters of special administration and administration and designated that one Grace Catherine Sweney Carson was the widow of the decedent, (Ex. L-1) and that the Hon. Roald A. Hogenson did on the 11th day of October, grant letters of special administration to Tracy Collins Trust Company; that on the 13th day of October, Grace Catherine Carson filed a petition for probate of said estate (Ex. S-1) alleging that Charles Carson left surviving the following heirs at law: "Grace Catherine Carson, your petitioner herein and no other presently known heirs at law."

On October 14, 1948, Tracy Collins Trust Company, special administrator, filed a petition allegeing that Charles Carson was also known as H. F. Swann, also known as Henry F. Swann, and that the title should be



so amended and that decedent had two children by marriage, namely Robert V. Swann and Mrs. Mildred Swann Molanari, who were last heard of at Chicago, Illinois in the year 1944. Notice of hearing on letters of administration were then mailed on the petition of Dr. Anderson to Grace Catherine Sweney Carson at 2300 South State Street, Salt Lake County, Utah, Robert V. Swann, Chicago, Illinois and Mrs. Mildred Swann Molanari, Chicago, Illinois on the 16th day of October, 1948. (Ex. L-1). On the 21st day of October, 1948, Grace Carson filed an objection to the petition of Dr. Anderson for letters and alleged "That decedent had relatives in the State of Arizona the exact denomination is not familiar to the Protestant but that said Protestant is now making inquiry to determine who such relatives and heirs are." (Ex. L-1). On December 21, 1948, Dr. Anderson filed an amended petition for letters of administration, setting forth that his information, since the filing of his original petition, is that Grace Catherine Sweney Carson was not the widow of the decedent and that the heirs at law were Robert V. Swann and Mrs. Mildred Swann Molanari, of Chicago, Illinois. On the 6th day of May, 1949, Tracy Collins filed a petition further amending the title of the deceased by adding R. C. Tiller and Robert C. Tiller. On June 7, 1949, Grace Carson filed an amended petition for probate, alleging, "that he left him surviving the following heirs at law, Grace Catherine Carson, your petitioner herein and no other presently known heirs at law."

On the 1st day of April, 1949, Neil O'Donnell, filed a petition as a preferred creditor, asking the appointment

of Tracy Collins Trust Company and alleged that Robert V. Swann and Mildred Swann Molanari were the heirs at law. (Ex. 19). By order of court the petitions filed by Dr. Anderson, Grace Carson and Neil O'Donnell were consolidated for hearing and various hearings were had thereon at which the testimony of Mr. Beless, the assistant trust officer of the special administrator was adduced as to what progress was made by letters and inquiries as to the whereabouts of the plaintiffs and the total sum of \$25.00 was authorized for search of the plaintiffs, by the court. At one of these hearings Grace Catherine Carson testified as to her marriage in South Dakota, 25 or 30 years before to the decedent and that they had lived as husband and wife to the death of the decedent.

That on the 11th day of June, 1949, the Hon. Jos. G. Jeppson did make an oral decision appointing Loren G. Norton, the designee of Grace Carson, the administrator of the Charles Carson Estate. That a printed form Order appointing Loren G. Norton as administrator was signed by the Hon. Jos. G. Jeppson on the 20th day of June, 1949, and on the same day, letters of administration were filed by Loren G. Norton and a corporate surety bond in the sum of \$22,000.00 was filed by the defendant, The Employers Liability Assurance Corporation.

Tracy Collins in accordance with the Order of Judge Jeppson filed its first and final account as special administrator on July 7, 1949, requesting instructions of the court as to whether or not the assets of the estate should be turned over to Loren G. Norton until such time as Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Decree

were entered on the matter of the appointment of the administrator in the cause. That on the 22nd day of July, 1949, Judge Joseph G. Jeppson did file Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Decree, appointing Loren G. Norton as administrator of the Estate of Charles Carson and did make the following findings:

“2. That said petitioner and said decedent owned a store in Salt Lake City, Utah, the name of which was Carson and Carson; that both worked in the store, both transacted the business and the business was conducted as a partnership, and was so run for a period of thirteen years; that many people in Salt Lake City, Utah, knew the said Mr. and Mrs. Charles Carson for a period of over thirty years, and who knew them as man and wife, and that they lived together as man and wife; that all business that has been conducted between said parties, Charles Carson and Grace Catherine Carson, was conducted by both of said parties and in the business affairs of the parties, each was recognized as an owner therein and that they consulted together in relation to said business matters, and that during all of said time, they lived together, cohabited together as man and wife, and that the said Charles Carson, also known as H. F. Swann, also known as Henry F. Swann, also known as R. C. Tiller, also known as Robert C. Tiller, always obtained permission from Grace Catharine Carson in all business deals that were transacted within the knowledge of them, and the witnesses who knew them and all others, according to their understanding and best information.”

“4. That Mrs. Grace Catharine Carson, in a hearing before the above entitled Court, testified

under oath that she and Mr. Charles Carson, also known as H. F. Swann, also known as Henry F. Swann, also known as R. C. Tiller, also known as Robert C. Tiller had traveled and lived together as man and wife in other states, including the State of Wyoming, in which they lived for a period of over six months, and in the State of Utah, for a period of twenty-five to thirty years.”

“7. That he left surviving the following heirs at law, Grace Catherine Carson, your petitioner herein.”

Prior to filing of Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Decree, appointing Loren G. Norton as of July 22, 1949, administrator, an Order of Publication of Notice to Creditors was filed on the 23rd day of June, 1949, by Loren G. Norton as administrator and publication of notice to creditors was completed on the 15th day of July, 1949. Publication to creditors being in the name of Charles Carson, also known as H. F. Swann, also known as Henry F. Swann, also known as Henry F. Tiller, also known as R. C. Tillier, also known as Robert Tiller, deceased.

Tracy Collins Trust Company thereupon turned over the assets of the estate to Loren G. Norton for administration and Tracy Collins Trust Company was discharged as special administrator on the 31st day of August 1949.

That E. LeRoy Shields, a notary public had Dr. Howard T. Anderson file a claim for \$25.00 on September 8, 1949, and said claim was approved and allowed by

Court September 9, 1949. Payment of said claim is alleged in the first and final account of Chas. Carson estate.

That Loren G. Norton, as administrator filed a petition for widow's allowance for Grace Carson for the sum of \$125.00 per month on June 29, 1949, and did obtain an Order granting widow's allowance on July 1, 1949, without any notice of said hearing, and did again on October 28, 1949, file a petition for increase of widow's allowance to Grace Carson to the sum of \$200.00 per month, which order was granted without notice on the 28th day of October, 1949. On December 7, 1949, Loren G. Norton filed a first and final account and petition for distribution in said estate alleging:

“that the only heir of said decedent that can be found is Grace Catherine Carson who died on the 4th day of November, 1949, leaving a will to her property and estate which has been filed for probate in the above entitled court.”

That on this first and final petition the only notice given was that of posting notices and the court did enter a decree of settlement of first and final account and for distribution and discharge as of the 21st day of December, 1949, which decree provided:

“That the said Charles Carson, also known as H. F. Swan, also known as Henry F. Swan, also known as R. C. Tiller, also known as Robert C. Tiller, deceased, died intestate leaving him surviving the following heirs at law who would be entitled to share in the residue of said estate as

hereinafter described, remaining for distribution; Grace Catherine Carson, his wife, of Salt Lake City, Utah."

That to date there has never been filed receipts in the estate of Charles Carson, deceased, nor a discharge of the administrator as such.

The plaintiffs allege eleven acts as the basis of this action, being broken up into three periods as follows:

That the defendant, Loren G. Norton, did falsely, fraudulently and deceitfully enter into and act with Grace Catherine Carson in her application and actions applying for his appointment in said estate as the administrator thereof in the following particulars:

(a) That at the time Grace Catharine Carson filed her petition for letters of administration and objection to the petition of Dr. Howard T. Anderson, that defendant Loren G. Norton well knew that plaintiffs herein were the children of the decedent Charles Carson and to his best information resided in Chicago, Illinois.

(b) That Grace Catharine Carson was not the widow of Charles Carson, deceased, nor was she his heir at law.

(c) The publishing of a purported notice to creditors, the first publication of which was on June 24, 1949, and the last date of publication on the 15th day of July, 1949, prior to his appointment as the duly appointed and qualified administrator of the estate of Charles Carson deceased.

That Loren G. Norton, as administrator of the Estate of Charles Carson, deceased, falsely, fraudulently

and deceitfully acted with Grace Catherine Carson from the time of his appointment until the death of the said Grace Catharine Carson in the handling of said estate in the following particulars:

(d) That no legal notice to heirs or creditors was ever published in this estate.

(e) That he did file two petitions herein referred to in paragraph 11, for widow's allowance and had the sum of \$500.00 paid out of the estate, well knowing that Grace Catharine Carson was not the widow of the decedent or entitled to a widow's allowance.

(f) That at no time after July 22, 1949, were notices sent to the plaintiffs herein advising them of any matter in the handling or distribution of the Estate of Charles Carson, deceased.

(g) That no diligent search was made to locate the plaintiffs herein at Chicago, Illinois, and that plaintiffs have for many years resided at Chicago, Illinois, and could easily have been located through proper channels of investigation.

(h) That he failed to inventory assets, which he owed to the estate, and thereby converted the same to his own use in the sum of \$300.00. That he failed to inventory an indebtedness of his brother, which was a loan on the part of the decedent to his brother, and that he failed to properly inventory assets of said estate which were in his possession, namely numerous rings and settings of rings and instances of safety deposit box and blue foot locker.

That Loren G. Norton, administrator, falsely, fraudulently and deceitfully failed to disclose to the Court in



the First and Final Account and Petition for Distribution of said estate the following:

(i) The fact that he knew prior to the death of the decedent that the plaintiffs were the children of the decedent and his lawful heirs.

(j) That Grace Catharine Carson was not the widow of the decedent and entitled to distribution of all assets of said estate as the only heir at law.

(k) The fact of what search had been made as the administrator of the estate to locate the plaintiffs herein nor to disclose to the Court the likelihood of plaintiffs herein being heirs at law of said decedent well knowing, that he, the said defendant, would beneficially gain by not making any such disclosures of other heirs, as he at said time well knew, at the time of the filing of said First and Final Account that Grace Catharine Carson had died on November 4, 1949, prior to the filing of the First Account and that he, the defendant, was the residuary beneficiary of the estate of Grace Catharine Carson and would materially gain by not having the plaintiffs herein participate in the distribution of the estate of Charles Carson deceased, and that failure to disclose to the Court the probability of such heirs for the purpose of depriving these plaintiffs of their just share of said estate and by such failure to so disclose the probability of plaintiffs, from having plaintiffs herein advised as to their interest in the estate, and to avoid any adversary contest in the probate of said estate.

At the trial of this cause it was determined that the plaintiffs were the children and heirs of Charles

Carson (R. 146) so there is no issue of that fact on this appeal.

Volume one of the transcript could have been eliminated as the first four witnesses, namely plaintiffs and the two Mr. Bakers from South Dakota testified as to identity of plaintiffs. Counsel for The Employers Liability insisted on the full record on appeal.

The following statement of witnesses will eliminate as much as possible of the fact that plaintiffs are heirs of Charles Carson, deceased.

Robert V. Tiller, one of the plaintiffs, relates the names used during his life, states the name of his father and mother and that he was born October 4, 1901. (R. 173 and 409). That he resided at 4707 Kenmore Avenue, Chicago, Illinois, six years immediately prior to coming to Salt Lake City in 1950 (R. 174), and then relates the other various addresses where he resided in Chicago, since approximately 1930. (R. 182). His earliest recollection of any residence was Gynadotte, West Virginia, when about two years old. (R. 184). That his father's name was Robert C. Tiller and mother's Maydie Sherman Tiller, and moved to Chicago and attended Longfellow School until 1912 or 1913. (R. 185). Then moved to Vetel, South Dakota residing there until 1926, and attended England School. (R. 187). That his mother died in Chicago in 1926. (R. 189). He left the farm at Vetel, South Dakota in 1927, traveling to Omaha, Nebraska, Denver, Colorado, working on farms and for Union News Company at Denver. (R. 190). Returned to Chicago in 1930 and resided there until 1950 except for trips. (R. 191).

Operated restaurant nine months in 1949 in Chicago. (R. 195).

That his father's name while residing in Chicago was H. F. Swann and mother's name Mary Swann. Plaintiff's name, Robert Swann and sister's name Mildred Swann and the same names were used during the family residence at Vetel, South Dakota. (R. 203). He last saw his father in 1923, when he left the farm at Vetel, South Dakota, but communicated by letter for a year. (R. 204). Made trip to California in 1948 by Trailway Bus. Made inquiry of father at Vetel in 1947 or 1948 by letter. (R. 216). Had never received any mail from Salt Lake City, Utah, of any kind, and the name he used since 1930 was Robert Tillier. (R. 219). Had been working three or four years for Yellow Cab in Chicago, prior to going to California in 1946. (R. 269).

On cross examination, plaintiff relates various employments (R. 345 to 375), and that he had a telephone listing in 1949 at Chicago. (R. 397 to 401). He used the name Tillier. (R. 401).

The other plaintiff, Mildred Molinari, resides at 1354 Washtenaw, Chicago, Illinois. Recalled living in Huntington, West Virginia and that father's name was R. C. Tiller, and mother's name Maydie Tiller. (R. 427). That her brother, Robert Tiller, and the family moved to 3302 Archer Street, Chicago. (R. 428). The family then moved as a group to Vetel, South Dakota and the father's name was then Henry F. Swann, mother's name was Maydie Swann, brother's name Robert Swann and attended England School, graduating in 1913. (R. 430). The

family resided as a group at Vetat, South Dakota until 1922, when mother and this plaintiff went to Huntington, West Virginia to see her grandmother for two months and then returned to Chicago. (R. 431). This plaintiff remained in Chicago, and mother returned to Vetat, South Dakota, during which time this plaintiff was employed about three weeks at Sears, Roebuck & Co., and was then married and there was one child, issue of the marriage, Anthony Molinari and that she was later divorced and married Pellegreni and divorced him. (R. 432).

This plaintiff was present at divorce proceedings in Chicago by which her mother obtained a divorce from her father who was then residing in Chicago. (R. 433). Exhibits B-1 to E-1, admitted, showing personal service of summons on defendant R. C. Tiller at Chicago, Illinois, complaint filed, the testimony at the hearing of the divorce decree and decree of divorce of Maydie Tiller from R. C. Tiller, July 7, 1924. (R. 434). This plaintiff was a registered voter in Chicago under the name of Pellegreni (R. 437). Phone in name of Mildred Molinari in Chicago for 10 years. (R. 438). In December 1926, at time of death of her mother, this plaintiff saw her father at her home in Chicago and saw and talked with her father in Chicago in 1927. She further identified father in Exhibits U and V. (R. 444). Relates various residences from earliest remembrance to date. (R. 445).

This plaintiff was cross examined as to residences and marriages and divorces and various aliases used to date of trial, at various cities in this country. She related

that she had an unlisted phone at the Washtenaw address in Chicago, always in the name of Molinari or Pellegrini. (R. 490). She is operating a cleaning business at the present time in Chicago. (R. 492). She has been a registered voter since 1937 in Chicago under the name of Mildred.Pellegrini. (R. 499).

George E. Baker a witness for the plaintiffs, who resides at Martin, South Dakota, and was the owner of ground in Vetel, South Dakota, since 1913, and left there in September, 1929, (R. 279), stated that he knew a person by the name of H. F. Swann who owned adjacent ground to him. That Swann came to Vetel, South Dakota in the fall of 1912 or in the spring of 1913. That Henry F. Swann, also known as H. F. Swann, visited him at his home almost every Sunday until such time as his family came to South Dakota. That the family of Henry F. Swann was Maydie, his wife, son Robert and daughter Mildred. He related that Swann tried at one time to ride a bull in a corral and he was thrown from the bull. (R. 286). Identified (Ex. T.) as being Henry Swann and his wife and the women's name is Maydie, and the same people he knew as neighbors at Vetel, South Dakota. After Mr. Swann left the family homestead at Vetel, South Dakota, he next heard from him in January, 1944; identified letter, (Ex. Y) as having been received by him from the post office at Martin, (R. 288); identified letter (Ex. Z) as having been received by him in April of 1947. Had conversation at his home, Martin, South Dakota, about a couple of months after Exhibit Z was received with H. F. Swann, who told the witness that he had been

to Chicago trying to locate Robert and Mildred. (R. 290). He stated he had no success and failed to find them and asked me if I knew any one he could contact who might perhaps know anything or where he could find them. The main conversation had was about locating Mildred and Robert Swann. (R. 294). He stated he had been quite prosperous since he had been in Salt Lake and said he had accumulated quite a little wealth and he had never done anything for the children and they were all he had and he wanted to find them if at all possible and do what he could for them now.

He stated that when Charles Carson was at Vetala, South Dakota in 1947, he told him the purpose of his visit was to look for his children and after receiving the card that he was unable to find them in Chicago, he never heard further from him. The last he ever heard was a letter from Salt Lake stating that he was dead. (R. 313). The letters which he received either in 1949 or 1950 were to the effect that Henry Swann had died and they were trying to locate heirs. (R. 314). On cross examination Mr. Baker was shown Exhibit Y, one of the letters received from H. F. Swann with ink marks drawn through H. F. Swann and the words (to be forgotten) were on the letter when it was received by the witness, which indicated to the witness that H. F. Swann did not want his identity made known. (R. 323). This witness testified that Charles Carson told him that he was going by the name of Charles Carson. (R. 324). The witness relates that before 1944 he had heard that Swann was married under the name of Tiller and that this man had



come from Chicago and the two children on first acquaintance were known as Robert and Mildred. (R. 329).

George D. Baker, a witness for the plaintiffs testified that he resides at Martin, South Dakota. (R. 334). That he attended the England School, south of Vetel, South Dakota in 1913 and that during grade school at the England School, he knew Mildred Swann and Robert Swann and identified the plaintiffs as being those people. (R. 335). The last he ever saw the plaintiff, Mr. Swann was in 1927, (R. 337), but that plaintiff used the name of Tiller in 1924. (R. 338). That Robert Swann graduated in 1916, and he had no communication with Robert Swann after he left Vetel in 1927. (R. 339). He never saw Mildred's father after 1922. (R. 340).

L. J. Barclay, a witness in behalf of plaintiff testified that he is a practicing attorney and identified Exhibits U and V as to Charles Carson and the women who purported to be his wife. (R. 506). The witness represented Charles Carson in excess of ten years prior to 1948 and on several occasions in discussing the handling of real property and the interest of the lady that he was living with as his wife, such that she would have to sign, Carson then told him that it was none of her business or something to that effect and then would go elsewhere, and each time that Carson came to the witness about real estate transactions he had explained to him that she had to sign and then he would go elsewhere. (R. 507). During the last three or four years of the life of Mr. Carson, the witness had conversations with reference to two children of Mr. Carson. (R. 508). In the latter part

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