1952

Robert V. Tiller and Mildred Molinari v. Loren G. Norton et al : Brief of Respondents

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This action was originally commenced by the appellants and against LOREN G. NORTON, administrator of the Estate of Charles Carson, also known as H. F. Swann, also known as R. C. Tiller, also known as Robert C. Tillier, deceased, and the Employers Liability Assurance Corporation, Ltd., the latter being the bondsman of LOREN G. NORTON, the administrator. Subsequently, the Complaint was amended and the following defendants were added to the same: Edith M. Hazelrigg and Cathedral of the Magdalene Catholic Church of East South Temple, Salt Lake City, Utah also known as Roman Catholic Bishop of Salt Lake City, a corporation sole. The defendants then answered the Complaint and filed a Cross-complaint thereto, at which time the plaintiff obtained an order of the court to file a second amended Complaint, adding as party-defendant E. LeRoy Shields, as executor of the Estate of Grace Catherine Carson, deceased, and E. LeRoy Shields, individually. Answer was then filed by the various defendants to the plaintiff's Second Amended Complaint and trial was had upon the same. After a trial was had upon the issues of said Complaint, a judgment was entered in favor

of all of the defendants and against the plaintiffs, no cause of action.

POINTS INVOLVED

Is there any evidence in the record upon which these defendants can be held to the Plaintiffs, or upon which the Court's judgment could be reversed?

ARGUMENT

From this judgment the plaintiff appeals.

The plaintiff and appellant has filed its brief and the only place that the defendant, E. LeRoy Shields, executor of the Estate of Grace Catherine Carson and E. LeRoy Shields, individually, is mentioned in the brief of the plaintiff and appellant is on Page 87 thereof, and the only mention made of him is in the following paragraph:

"We respectfully contend that Grace Carson, Loren G. Norton, administrator and E. LeRoy Shields, as executor of the Estate of Grace Carson, deceased, have not acted in good faith either to the appellants and the plaintiffs or the court in the handling of this matter and have been guilty of extrinsic fraud sufficient to justify the intervention of a court on equity."

A close search of the appellant's brief does not in any way enlighten these defendants as to any action or position by them from which the plaintiff and appellants seek relief.

The brief does not disclose in any way how these defendants have in any way breached their duty, nor does it point out or set forth in any manner how defendants have violated any rights of the plaintiffs and appellants, nor have they set forth in any way what theory it is claimed by the appellants that any relief should be granted against these defendants from the judgment entered in their favor in the trial of said case of "no cause of action."

These defendants, feeling that there is no cause of action against them in said case and no evidence adduced against them which would justify a judgment against them in the case and feeling that they are justified in having the judgment against them sustained and dismissed as party defendant to said action, deems it advisable to file this brief and reply to the appellants' brief as against them. It will be noted from the record that this action was tried solely against the party defendants as the executor of the Estate of Charles Carson, deceased, and nowhere in the evidence or the brief of appellants is there any indication that said case reaches into or covers any action as against the executor or the attorneys of the Estate of Grace Catherine Carson, deceased, and inasmuch as these defendants represented the Estate of Grace Catherine Carson, deceased, after her death, as the executor named in her will, we cannot determine under what theory these defendants should be held as party defendants to this present action. We must concede then that they should not be held as defendants upon any theory and by the judgment of the District Court so far as they are concerned, should be affirmed and a judgment against them of no cause of action against

them should be sustained. True, that money which came into the hands of E. LeRoy Shields as executor of the Estate of Grace Catherine Carson, deceased, administered and distributed to her under the various orders of the court, and nobody has attempted to challenge these orders, has been upon the basis that the court lacked jurisdiction to make the various orders which was made in said estate. Whether under any theory an executor can be held liable under the circumstances existing here, we refer to the case of *H. W. Holland v. James H. McGill*, a Florida case, recited in 87 A. L. R. on Page 171, quoting from page 173, we have the following:

“Whatever may be the rights of a successful appellant to have an order of restitution entered in his favor to restore to him his rights in money or property of which he has been deprived by an erroneous decree that has been entered against him, and later set aside or reversed, it is certain that no such order can be entered against a mere attorney of record, summarily requiring him to personally make restitution for moneys which he has obtained for the benefit of his clients, and thereafter delivered over to them pursuant to such erroneous order, there being no fraud or contempt charged in connection with the procurement of the erroneous order under which the money has been directed to be paid out. This, at least, is the rule in cases where it has not been made to appear that the funds still remain in the attorney’s hands as the moneys of his clients.

Conceding that the order of September 4, 1929, by which the moneys were paid out on order of the court, was entirely erroneous as contended for by counsel for the successful complainant in the foreclosure case, the right of restitution which would arise against the Weedons in such complainant’s behalf,

by reason of that circumstance, does not extend to an imputation of liability against Holland who represented them as a mere attorney of record.

Under the doctrine of restitution an attorney cannot legally be required to personally make good the damages occasioned by an erroneous judicial order, even though such attorney induced the error to be committed by the court, especially in cases where no fraud or bad faith on his part is shown to have been practiced in connection therewith, and no funds belonging to his clients remain in his hands out of which to satisfy the order of restitution. To hold otherwise would make the practice of law one of such hazardous financial responsibility that few men would care to incur the risk of its practice, since nisi prius judges, like other judges, are human beings, and errors will from time to time be made by them, because of the insistence of lawyers, against reversal of which errors no foresight nor precaution taken could adequately guard, other than a gift of prevision concerning the ultimate decisions of the appellate courts that might become vested with jurisdiction to correct the errors of such nisi prius judges."

We now refer to the case of Pendergast v. Muirs, 238 NW 345 Atl. 347:

"The money in question was ordered to be paid to Lynch, Doyle and Mahoney as attorneys for Pendergast, not as individuals. To the extent of the payment, the Pendergast judgment was satisfied of record by the Clerk. The record shows that Lynch, Doyle and Mahoney within a day or so after receiving the money, transmitted it to their clients, the Pendergasts. It is not material that the Pendergasts may have used some of this money, when they received it, to pay attorney's fee due to Lynch, Doyle and Mahoney. Lynch,

Doyle and Mahoney received the money from the Clerk on behalf of the Pendergasts and not otherwise. The law is clear that a party who has received money on behalf of the judgment creditor for instance, as agent or attorney of the judgment creditor, cannot be compelled after reversal of the judgment, to restore the same, unless it be shown that such party still retains it. The general rule supported by a number of citations given is stated upon the record here presented. If there is any right to restitution, it must lie against the Pendergasts who, through the agency of their attorneys, received the money, and upon whose judgment the money was credited."

The case of *Green v. Brengle*, 6 SE 603, quoting from the syllabus of the court:

"No privity exists between the attorney who prosecuted a suit and the defendant therein, to support an action of assumpsit for the recovery of a money judgment paid by defendant and received by the attorneys as the property of their client."

From the case of *Matter v. White*, 81 NY Suppl. 858:

"Where a judgment in plaintiff's favor has been recovered in an action, the money paid to plaintiff's attorney, an action will not lie, on reversal of a judgment against the attorney to recover the money which he had retained, pursuant to an agreement between himself and client, in payment of a debt due him from his client."

The statute prescribed certain duties against an administrator and executor of an estate and we refer to Section 102-12-6 of the Probate Code of Utah.

"When all debts are paid, or sooner if before that time all the property of the estate has been sold or

there are sufficient funds in his hands for the payment of all the debts due by the estate, and the estate is in proper condition to be closed, the executor or administrator must render a final account and pray for settlement of his administration. Such petition shall contain the names and addresses of the heirs, devisees or other persons entitled to participate in such distribution, according to the best knowledge, information and belief of the executor or administrator. The clerk shall file the petition, and the court or clerk shall fix the date of hearing thereon, notice of which shall be given." (C. L. 17 Section 7763).

We have made rather extensive search of the question involved and we are unable to find any cases which hold the executor of an estate that has probated an estate in accordance with the court's order in every respect is chargeable with any liability if the court makes an order distributing the estate to the wrong persons. Only in such cases as the executor still holds the property of the estate in his hands and demand has been made upon him for the payment of the assets of said estate, to a person other than the ones which the court orders distribution to be made to.

We therefore submit that the judgment of the Court, so far as E. LeRoy Shields, as executor of the Estate of Grace Catherine Carson and E. LeRoy Shields, individually is concerned should be affirmed.

Respectfully submitted,

SHIELDS & SHIELDS

Attorneys for Defendant